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COUNT ONE

(Conspiracy to Commt Wre Fraud and to Engage in
Prohi bited Financial Transactions wth Iraq)

The Grand Jury charges:

THE O L- FOR- FOOD PROGRAM

1. On or about August 6, 1990, approximately four days
after the lIragi armnmy invaded Kuwait, the United Nations inposed
econoni ¢ sanctions on the Governnment of Iraq. These sanctions
prohi bited nenber states of the United Nations from anong other
things, trading in any Iraqi combdities or products. The United
Nati ons continued to enforce these sanctions up to and including in
or about 20083.

2. On or about April 14, 1995, the Security Council of
the United Nations adopted Resolution 986, which authorized the
Governnent of |Iraq to sell oil under certain conditions —
principally, that the proceeds of all sales of Iraqi oil were to be

deposited into an escrow bank account nonitored by the United
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Nati ons and used only to purchase various humanitarian goods for
the benefit of the Iraqgi people. The Governnment of Iraq agreed in
witing to the terms of Security Council Resolution 986 after nore
than a year of negotiations over the particular nethods of
i npl enenting this arrangenent.

3. The United Nations Ofice of Iraq Programe, Ol -
for-Food (the “G | -for-Food Prograni) was subsequently established
to adm ni ster, anong other things, the sale of oil and purchase of
humani t ari an goods by Iraq. A special bank account was established
at a bank in Manhattan (the “Q | -for-Food Bank Account”) to handl e
t hese sal es and purchases. The United Nations’ econom ¢ sanctions
on lraq remained in place for all trade and transactions not
aut horized by the QI -for-Food Program

4. During the operation of the G -for-Food Program
federal | aw prohibited United States conpani es and i ndi viduals from
executing contracts or engaging in a variety of transactions with
t he Governnent of Iraqg unless they received a |license issued by the
Department of Treasury’'s O fice of Foreign Assets Control

5. The Governnent of Iraq began selling oil pursuant to
the O l-for-Food Programin or about Decenber 1996. Between in or
about Decenber 1996 and Decenber 2002, the Security Council of the
United Nations adopted a series of resolutions that re-authorized
the G| -for-Food Programfor approximtely thirteen 180-day phases

of operation. Throughout each of these phases, the price at which
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Iraqi oil was sold under the O I-for-Food Program —known as the
Oficial Selling Price (“O S.P.”) —was established in Manhattan by
a rotating group of United Nations oil overseers, who attenpted to
set the price at the highest rate bearable by the market in order
to maxim ze the revenue generated by the QO -for-Food Program
This, inturn, would increase the anount of humanitarian goods that
could be purchased through the Gl -for-Food Programfor the Iraqi
peopl e.

6. Under the QG| -for-Food Program the Governnment of
Irag al one had the power to select the conpanies and individuals
who received the rights to purchase Iraqgi oil. During every phase
of the G l-for-Food Program officials at the highest | evels of the
Governnment of Iraq sel ected a group of conpani es and i ndividuals to
receive the rights to purchase certain quantities of Ilraqi oil at
a certain price per barrel (frequently referred to as “all ocati ons”
of oil). These conpani es and individuals —many of whom were not
otherwi se involved in the oil industry —were able to reap |arge
profits by selling their allocations of Iraqi oil to brokers and/or
conpani es capable of transporting the oil to a refinery.

7. Fromat |east in or about 2000, up to and i ncl udi ng
in or about March 2003, officials of the Iraqi Governnent
condi tioned the distribution of allocations of oil under the O -
for-Food Program on the recipients’ willingness to pay a secret

surcharge to the Governnment of Iraq (hereinafter, the *Surcharge



Schene”). The Governnent of Iraq directed that these surcharges —
representing a percentage of the total anount of each oil contract
and totaling at | east several hundred mllion dollars —be paid to
front conpani es and/ or bank accounts under the control of the Iraqi
Governnment in various countries in the Mddle East and el sewhere.

THE DEFENDANTS

8. At all times relevant to this Indictnment, DAVID B.
CHALMERS, JR., the defendant, was a citizen of the United States,
a resident of Houston, Texas, and the sole sharehol der of BAYO L
(USA), INC, the defendant, which was an oil conpany based in
Houst on, Texas, and incorporated in the State of Del aware.

9. At all times relevant to this Indictnent, DAVID B.
CHALMERS, JR., the defendant, was the sole sharehol der of BAYO L
SUPPLY & TRADI NG LI M TED, the defendant, which was a conpany based
i n Nassau, Bahanmas, and incorporated in the Bahamas. At all tines
relevant to this Indictnment, accounting, business, and other
affairs for BAYO L SUPPLY & TRADI NG LI M TED wer e conducted fromt he
Houst on of fices, and by the enployees, of BAYOL (USA), INC, the
defendant (collectively, the “BAYO L COWAN ES”).

10. At all times relevant to this Indictrment, JOHN
IRVING the defendant, was a citizen of the United Kingdom a
resi dent of London, England, and an oil trader. Between at | east
in or about 2000, up to and including in or about March 2003,

| RVING and DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR., the defendant, worked together



to purchase lIragi oil on behalf of the BAYOL COWAN ES, the
def endant s.

11. At all tines relevant to this Indictrment, LUDML
DIONI SSIEV, the defendant, was a citizen of Bulgaria, a |egal
permanent resident alien of the United States, a resident of
Houst on, Texas, and an oil trader. Between at |east in or about
2000, up to and including in or about March 2003, DI ONI SSIEV and
DAVI D B. CHALMERS, JR., the defendant, worked together to purchase
Iragi oil on behalf of the BAYO L COWAN ES, the defendants.

MEANS AND METHODS OF THE CONSPI RACY

12. At all tinmes relevant to this Indictnent, DAVID B.
CHALMERS, JR, the defendant, directed, arranged for, and
supervi sed the purchase of Iragi oil by the BAYO L COWAN ES, the
defendants, fromrecipients of oil allocations under the OQl-for-
Food Programor frombrokers working on behal f of those recipients.
In purchasing these allocations of Iragi oil, CHALMERS and the
BAYO L COVPANI ES fol |l owed the typical industry practice by agreeing
to pay (a) the OS.P. (Oficial Selling Price) to the G I-for-Food
Bank Account, and (b) a comm ssion to the allocation-hol der and/or
broker. The conmm ssions represented, in theory, a portion of the
price above O S.P. that the oil market coul d bear.

13. After allocations of Iraqi oil were purchased in the
manner descri bed above, representatives of the BAYO L COWVPANI ES,

the defendants, arranged through facsimle and electronic nmail



transm ssions, and tel ephone calls, for cargo ships to lift the oi
from Irag and transport it to downstream purchasers (usually,
| arger oil conpanies with their ow refineries). Typically, after
successfully lifting the oil fromlraq, a representative of BAYO L
(USA), INC. would cause the appropriate funds to be wired to the
G| -for-Food Bank Account in Mnhattan, and to the allocation-
hol der and/ or broker.

14. On a regular basis fromat |east in or about 1997,
up to and including in or about March 2003, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR.,
t he def endant —on behal f of the BAYO L COWAN ES, the defendants
—of fered advi ce about market conditions to the United Nations oi
overseers in Manhattan and to officials of the Government of Iraq
in Baghdad in an effort to influence the overseers’ selection of an
O S P CHALMERS offered this advice through facsimle
transm ssions and face-to-face neetings in both Mnhattan and
Baghdad. LUDML DIONISSIEV, the defendant, joined CHALMERS in
Baghdad on at |east one occasion for this purpose, anpong others,
and DIONISSIEV and JOHN IRVING the defendant, both assisted
CHALMERS i n di ssem nating market informationto lraqgi officials via
facsim|e.

15. The Governnent of Iragq began inplenenting the
Surcharge Schene in or about m d-2000. Iraqi Governnent officials
indicated to co-conspirators not named as defendants herein that

any conpanies or individuals refusing to participate in the



Sur charge Schenme woul d be barred fromfurther participation in the
Ql-for-Food Program In addition, at various tines relevant to
this Indictnment, the Governnent of Iraq required the paynent of
unaut hori zed fees before cargo ships woul d be permttedto lift oi
from Iraqi ports. Paynment of these so-called “port fees” was
unaut hori zed by and conceal ed fromthe United Nations QI -for-Food
Program

16. Fromin or about md-2000, up to and including at
| east in or about | ate 2001, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR., the defendant,
on behalf of the BAYOL COWAN ES, the defendants, worked wth
officials of the Governnent of Iraq and other co-conspirators not
nanmed as defendants herein to | obby the United Nations overseers to
select a deflated OS.P. in order to permt the Governnent of Iraq
to collect its illegal surcharges nore easily. By obtaining a
lower O S.P., recipients of oil allocations would be in a better
position to collect higher comm ssions on the sales of their
all ocations, and thereby pay the surcharge and still retain a
profit for thensel ves. CHALMERS sent faxes fromHouston to Baghdad
and Manhattan in furtherance of this effort to influence the
sel ection of a |lower O S. P.

17. Fromin or about April 2001, up to and including at
| east in or about Septenmber 2001, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, the
def endant, on behalf of the BAYO L COWAN ES, the defendants,

agreed to pay, did pay, and caused to be paid mllions of dollars



in secret illegal surcharges to the CGovernnent of Iraq. These
secret illegal surcharge paynents covered oil purchased fromin or
about m d-2000, up to and including in or about early 2001 by
CHALMERS and the BAYO L COMPANIES from a foreign conpany that was
operated by co-conspirators not nanmed as defendants herein (the
“Foreign Conpany”) and whose operations were funded al nost
excl usi vely by CHALMERS and t he BAYO L COVPANI ES. To conceal these
i1l egal surcharge paynents, CHALMERS agreed to pay the Foreign
Conmpany inflated conmmssion prices on the original oi |
transactions, wth the knowl edge and expectation that the Foreign
Conpany woul d t hen nake t he surcharge paynents to t he Gover nnment of
Irag. Based on instructions fromlraqi officials, representatives
of the BAYO L COWPANI ES sent these illegal surcharge paynents via
wire transfers through the Foreign Conpany to a bank account of Al
Wasel and Babel CGeneral Trading (L.L.C ), a front conpany for the
Government of Iraq located in the United Arab Emrates.

18. Wth know edge of the Surcharge Schene, fromin or
about 2001, up to and including in or about March 2003, DAVID B
CHALMERS, JR., JOHN IRVING LUDML DI ONSSIEV, and the BAYO L
COWPANI ES, the defendants, continued to purchase Iraqgi oil under
the G| -for-Food Program During this tinme, on numerous occasi ons,
all of the defendants negotiated via facsimle transm ssions and
tel ephone calls —and eventually paid and caused to be paid via

wire transfer —the paynent of inflated comm ssions to sellers of



Iragi oil allocations with the know edge and expectation that the
sellers would use sonme portion of those inflated conm ssions to
satisfy their illegal surcharge obligations to the Government of
Irag. By participating in this Surcharge Schenme and bypassi ng the
O l-for-Food Program DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR , JOHN IRVING LUDM L
DI ONI SSI EV, and the BAYO L COVPANI ES, diverted funds fromthe G-
for-Food Bank Account that otherw se would have been available to
pur chase humani tarian goods under the G| -for-Food Program

THE VI OLATI ON

19. From at least in or about md-2000, up to and
including in or about March 2003, in the Southern District of New
York and el sewhere, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, JOHN IRVING LUDM L
DIONI SSIEV, BAYOL (USA), INC, and BAYOL SUPPLY & TRAD NG
LI M TED, the defendants, and ot hers known and unknown, unlawfully,
willfully, and know ngly did conbine, conspire, confederate, and
agree together and with each other to commt offenses against the
United States, to wit, to violate Sections 1343 and 2332d of Title
18, United States Code.

20. It was a part and an object of the conspiracy that
DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, JOHAN IRVING LUDML DI ONISSIEV, BAYO L
(USA), INC., and BAYO L SUPPLY & TRADI NG LI M TED, the defendants,
and ot hers known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully, and know ngly,
havi ng devised and intending to devise a schenme and artifice to

defraud, and for obtaining noney and property by neans of fal se and



fraudul ent pretenses, representations, and prom ses, would and did
transmt, and cause to be transmtted by neans of wire, radio, and
television conmunication in interstate and foreign conmerce,
writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds for the purpose of
executing such schene and artifice, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1343.

21. It was a further part and an object of the
conspiracy that DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, JOHN IRVING LUDM L
DIONISSIEV, BAYOL (USA), INC, and BAYOL SUPPLY & TRADI NG
LI M TED, the defendants, and ot hers known and unknown, at | east one
of whom was a United States person, and know ng and having
reasonabl e cause to know that Irag was a country desi gnated under
section 6(j) of the Export Adm nistration Act of 1979 as a country
supporting international terrorism would and did unlawfully and
knowi ngly engage in financial transactions with the governnent of
that country without conplying with the |icensing and aut hori zati on
requirenents of the Iraqgi Sanction Regulations, in violation of

Section 2332d of Title 18, United States Code.

OVERT ACTS
22. In furtherance of the charged conspiracy and to
effect the illegal objects thereof, the foll ow ng overt acts, anong

others, were commtted in the Southern District of New York and
el sewhere:

a. I n or about Decenber 2000, the Foreign Conpany
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recei ved an allocation of approximately 37 mllion barrels of oil
fromthe Governnent of Iraq.

b. I n or about Decenber 2000, DAVID B. CHALMERS,
JR, the defendant, on behalf of the BAYOL COWAN ES, the
def endants, contracted with the Forei gn Conpany to purchase the oil
al | ocation descri bed above in Paragraph 22(a).

C. In or about Decenber 2000, DAVID B. CHALMERS,
JR, the defendant, on behalf of the BAYOL COWAN ES, the
defendants, sent a letter via facsimle to officials of the
Governnent of Iraq in which CHALMERS proposed a pricing nmechani sm
that could be used to seek a lower O S. P. for Iragi oil —thereby

decreasing the funds deposited into the QI -for-Food Bank Account

for the benefit of the lraqi people —in order to allow the
Governnment of Iraq to collect illegal surcharges on sales of that
oil.

d. From in or about April 2001, up to and
including in or about Septenber 2001, representatives of the
For ei gn Conpany | ocated outside the United States faxed i nvoices to
representatives of the BAYOL COWANES, the defendants, 1in
Houston, Texas, requesting funds wth which to pay illegal
surcharges to Al Wasel and Babel GCeneral Trading (L.L.C.).

e. On or about August 13, 2001, representatives of
the BAYO L COWAN ES, the defendants, sent via wre transfer

approximately $1,287,771.60 to a bank account in Switzerland
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controlled by a representative of the Foreign Conpany.

f. On or about August 24, 2001, a representative
of the Foreign Conpany sent approximtely $1,092,345 via wre
transfer, which passed through a bank in Manhattan, to a bank
account of Al Wasel and Babel General Trading (L.L.C ), located in
the United Arab Em rates.

g. I n or about August 2001, a co-conspirator not
named as a defendant herein (“CC-1") received an allocation of
approximately two mllion barrels of oil from the Governnent of
Iraq under the QI -for-Food Program

h. I n or about August 2001, LUDM L DI ONI SSI EV, the
defendant, in conjunction wth DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, the
def endant, and on behalf of the BAYO L COVPAN ES, the defendants,
negoti ated a contract with a representative of CC-1 to purchase the
oi |l allocation described above in Paragraph 22(q).

i On or about Cctober 4, 2001, pursuant to the
contract described above i n Paragraph 22(h), representatives of the
BAYO L COWAN ES, the defendants, paid CC-1 a conmm ssion of
approxi mately $839,368.40 via wire transfer, and CC-1 thereafter
conveyed approximately $629,526.30 of this commission to
representatives of the Governnent of Irag.

J - In or about Septenber 2001, a co-conspirator
not named as a defendant herein (“CC-2") brokered a sale to DAVID

B. CHALMERS, JR., and the BAYO L COWPAN ES, the defendants, of an
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al l ocation of approximately one mllion barrels of oil awarded to
anot her co-conspirator not naned as a defendant herein (“CC3") by
t he Governnent of Iraq under the O | -for-Food Program

K. In or about Septenber and COctober 2001, JOHN
| RVING the defendant, in conjunction with DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR.,
the defendant, and on behalf of the BAYOL COWANES, the
def endants, negotiated with CC-2 a contract to purchase CC-3's oil
al l ocati on described above in Paragraph 22(j).

| . On or about October 4, 2001, pursuant to the
contract described above i n Paragraph 22(k), representatives of the
BAYO L COWPANI ES, the defendants, sent to CC-3 a conm ssion of
approxi mately $450,885.45 via wire transfer, and CC-3 thereafter
conveyed appr oxi matel y $300, 000 of this comm ssi on to
representatives of the Governnent of Iraq.

m In or about March 2002, anot her co-conspirator
not nanmed as a defendant herein (“CC-4") caused a letter to be sent
to a high-ranking official of the Governnent of Iraq i n Baghdad in
which CC-4 outlined a plan to settle the illegal surcharge
obligation owed by CC-4 as a result of an oil transaction brokered
in or about 2000 by JOHN I RVING DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, and the
BAYO L COWPAN ES, the defendants.

n. On or about July 21, 2002, a representative of
the Foreign Conpany delivered to officials of the Governnent of

Ilrag a letter that was drafted in consultation with DAVID B.
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CHALMERS, JR., the defendant, and that proposed a paynent plan for
certain illegal surcharges owed by CC-4 and ot hers.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 & 1349.)

COUNT_TWO

(Wre Fraud)

The Grand Jury further charges:

23. Paragraphs One through Ei ghteen and Twenty-Two of
this Indictnent are realleged, repeated, and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth herein.

24. From at least in or about md-2000, up to and
including in or about March 2003, in the Southern District of New
York and el sewhere, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR , JOHN IRVING LUDM L
DIONI SSIEV, BAYOL (USA), INC., and BAYOL SUPPLY & TRAD NG
LI M TED, the defendants, and ot hers known and unknown, unlawfully,
willfully, and know ngly having devised and intending to devise a
schene and artifice to defraud, and for obtaining noney and
property by neans  of false and fraudul ent pr et enses,
representations, and promses, transmtted and caused to be
transmtted by neans of wire, radio, and tel evision comuni cation
in interstate and foreign commerce, witings, signs, signals,
pi ctures, and sounds for the purpose of executing such schene and
artifice, towt, CHALMERS, | RVING and DI ONI SSIEV attenpted to and
did enploy facsimle transm ssions and wire transfers of noney on

behal f of BAYO L (USA), INC. and BAYO L SUPPLY & TRADING LIM TED to

14



arrange the purchase of Iraqgi oil, which arrangenents and purchases
were designed to and did allow the sellers of such oil to nake
secret paynments to the Governnment of Iraq unauthorized by and
concealed from the United Nations’ G I-for-Food Program and
CHALMERS, DIONISSIEV, and IRVING offered advice via facsimle
transm ssions to lraqi officials in Baghdad and United Nations’ oi
overseers in Manhattan regarding the Oficial Selling Price for
Iragi oil under the QI -for-Food Program which advi ce was desi gned
to aid the success of the Surcharge Schene.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343, 1349, and 2.)

COUNT THREE

(Prohi bited Financial Transactions with Iraq)

The Grand Jury further charges:

25. Paragraphs One through Ei ghteen and Twenty-Two of
this Indictnent are realleged, repeated, and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth herein.

26. From at least in or about md-2000, up to and
including in or about March 2003, in the Southern District of New
York and el sewhere, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, JOHN IRVING LUDM L
DIONI SSIEV, BAYOL (USA), INC, and BAYOL SUPPLY & TRAD NG
LIMTED, the defendants, at |east one of whomwas a United States
person, and know ng and havi ng reasonabl e cause to know that Iraq
was a country designated under section 6(j) of the Export

Adm ni stration Act of 1979 as a country supporting international
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terrorism did unlawfully and know ngly engage in financial
transactions with the government of that country wi thout conplying
with the licensing and authorization requirenments of the Irag

Sanction Regul ations, towt, CHALMERS, | RVING DI ONI SSIEV, and t he
BAYO L COVPANI ES engaged in financial transactions with recipients
of allocations of Iraqi oil, which transactions were designed to
and did allow those recipients to make paynents to the Governnment
of lIraq unaut horized by and conceal ed fromthe United Nations’ GOl -
for-Food Program

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2332d and 2.)

COUNT _FOUR

(Violation of the International Energency Econom c Powers Act)

The Grand Jury further charges:

27. Paragraphs One through Eighteen and Twenty-Two of
this Indictnent are realleged, repeated, and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth herein.

28. Title 50, United States Code, Section 1701, et seq.
known as the I nternational Energency Econom ¢ Powers Act (“1EEPA"),
grants the President the authority to, anong other things,
“investigate, . . . prevent or prohibit, any acquisition, holding,
wi t hhol di ng, use, transfer, withdrawal, transportation, inportation
or exportation of, or dealing in, or exercising any right, power,
or privilege with respect to, or transactions involving, any

property in which any foreign country or a national thereof has any
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i nterest by any person, or with respect to any property, subject to
the jurisdiction of the United States . . . .” 50 USC 8§
1702(a) (1) (B). Section 1701 grants the President the power to
exercise this authority upon declaration of a national energency.

29. I n Executive Order Nunber 12722, signed on August 2,
1990, President George H W Bush declared that “the policies and
actions of the Governnent of |Iraq constitute an unusual and
extraordinary threat to the national security and foreign policy of
the United States,” and decl ared “a national energency to deal with
that threat.” On August 9, 1990, follow ng passage of United
Nati ons Security Council Resolution Nunber 661 (which dealt, in
part, wth sanctions placed on Iraq) on August 6, 1990, the
President issued Executive O der Nunmber 12724. Executive Order
Nunber 12724 took “additional steps with respect to lraq s invasion
of Kuwait and the national energency declared in Executive O der
Nunber 12722.” Executive Orders No. 12722 and 12724, prohibited
certaintrade-related activitieswith lraqg at all times relevant to
this Indictnent.

30. Executive Oder Nunbers 12722 and 12724 (the
“Executive Orders”) inposed economc sanctions, including a
conpl ete trade enbargo, on Iraq. The Executive O ders prohibited,
anong ot her things, the export to Iraq of any goods, technol ogy, or
services fromthe United States and the performance by any United

States person of any contract in support of an industrial,
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commercial, public utility or governnment project in Irag. The
Executive Orders al so prohibited other activities relating to Irag.
For instance, Executive Order 12724 prohibited “any transaction by
a United States person relating to travel by any United States
citizen or permanent resident aliento lraq, after the date of this
order, other than transactions necessary to effect (i) such
person’s departure fromlraqg, (ii) travel and activities for the
conduct of the official business of the Federal Government or the
United Nations, or (iii) travel for journalistic activity by
persons regularly enployed in such capacity by a news-gathering
organi zation.” In addition, both of the Executive Oders
specifically prohibited “[alny transaction by any United States
person that evades or avoids, or has the purpose of evading or
avoi di ng, any of the prohibitions set forth in this order.” The
Executive Orders defined the term “United States person” as “any
United States citizen, permanent resident alien, juridical person
organi zed under the laws of the United States (including foreign
branches), or any person in the United States, and vessels of U S.
regi stration.”

31. Fromin or about 1990 through all tinmes relevant to
this Indictnment, the President continued, on an annual basis, the
nati onal energency wth respect to Irag. These successive
Executive Oders authorized the Secretary of Treasury, in

consultation with the Secretary of State, “to take such actions,
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including the pronulgation of rules and regulations, as may be
necessary to carry out the purposes” of the Executive O ders.

32. Pursuant to this authority, the Ofice of Foreign
Assets Control (“OFAC'), the office within the Departnent of
Treasury charged with the responsi bility of adm ni stering sanctions
agai nst foreign entities, promul gated regulations to inplenent the
Executive Orders. The relevant regul ations are | ocated in Section
575 of Title 31 of the Code of Federal Regul ations, and state, in

part:

a. “no property or interests in property of the
Governnent of lraq that are in the United States,
that hereafter come within the United States, or
that are or hereafter conme within the possession or
control of U S. persons, including their overseas
branches, may be transferred, paid, exported
wi thdrawn or otherwise dealt in,” and “any other
dealing in any security (or evidence thereof)
registered or inscribed in the nane of the
Governnent of Iraq and held within the possession
or control of a U S. person is prohibited,” w thout
first obtaining a license fromOFAC. 31 CF.R 8§
575. 201. By virtue of these prohibitions against
dealing wth Iraqi government  property, and
securities or interests therein, “[a] U S. person
may not, wthin the United States or abroad,
conduct transactions of any nature whatsoever with
an entity that the U S. person knows or has reason
to know is an Iraqi governnment entity unless the
entity is licensed by the Ofice of Foreign Assets
Control to conduct such transactions wth US.
persons.” 31 CF.R 8§ 575.408(c)(2);

b. “no goods, technol ogy (including technical data or
other information), or services may be exported
from the United States, or, if subject to U S
jurisdiction, exported or reexported froma third
country to lraq, to any entity owned or controlled
by the Governnent of Iragq, or to any entity
operated from lIraq,” wthout first obtaining a

19



license from OFAC. 31 C.F.R 8§ 575. 205;

C. Except in circunmstances not applicable here, “no
U.S. person may deal in property of Iraqgi origin
exported fromlraq after August 6, 1990, property
intended for exportation to Iraq, or property
i ntended for exportation from Irag to any other
country, nor may any U.S. person engage in any
activity that pronotes or is intended to pronote
such dealing,” without first obtaining a |icense
fromOFAC. 31 C F.R § 575. 206;

d. “no U. S. person may engage in any transaction
relating to travel by any U.S. citizen or pernmanent
resident alien to lIrag, or to activities by any
U S citizen or permanent resident alien wthin
Iraq,” without first obtaining a license from OFAC.
31 CF.R 8§ 575.207;

e. “no U.S. person may performany contract, including
a financing contract, in support of an industrial,
comercial, public utility, or governmental project
in lraq,” without first obtaining a license from
OFAC. 31 C.F.R 8§ 575.209;

f. “no U.S. person may commt or transfer, directly or
indirectly, funds or other financial or economc
resources to the Governnent of lraq or any person
in lrag” wthout first obtaining an OFAC |icense.
31 CF.R 8§ 575.210; and

g. “any transaction that has the purpose of, or which
has the effect of, evading or avoiding, or which
facilitates the evasion or avoi dance of, any of the
prohibitions set forth in this subpart is hereby
prohi bi t ed. Any att enpt to violate the
prohibitions set forth in this part is hereby
prohi bited. Any conspiracy forned for the purpose
of engaging in transactions prohibited by this part
is hereby prohibited.” 31 C.F.R § 575.211.

33. Fromin or about m d-2000, up to and i ncluding in or
about March 2003, in the Southern District of New York and
el sewhere, DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, JOHN IRVING LUDM L DI ONI SSI EV,

BAYO L (USA), INC, and BAYOL SUPPLY & TRADI NG LIMTED, the
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defendants, at |east one of whom was a United States person,
unlawfully and knowingly violated |IEEPA, and the regulations
pronmul gated thereunder, as described above, to wt, wthout
obt ai ni ng t he requi red OFAC approval , CHALMERS, | RVI NG DI ONI SSI EV,
and the BAYO L COWAN ES engaged in financial transactions wth
recipients of allocations of Iraqi oil, which transactions were
designed to and did all ow those recipients to make paynents to the
Governnment of Ilraq unauthorized by and concealed fromthe United
Nations’ G| -for-Food Program and traveled to and fromlraq.
(Title 50, United States Code, Section 1701, et seq.; Public Law
101- 513, Section 586E (Novenber 5, 1990); Executive Orders 12722
and 12724; Title 31, C.F.R Section 575.201, et seq.; and Title
18, United States Code, Section 2.)

FORFEI TURE ALLEGATI ON

34. As a result of conmtting one or nore of the
conspiracy, wre fraud, and | EEPA offenses alleged in Counts One,
Two, and Four of this Indictrment, in violation of 18 U . S.C. 8§ 371
1343, and 1349, and 50 U.S.C. §8 1701, et seq., DAVID B. CHALMERS
JR, JOHN IRVING LUDML DI ONI SSI EV, BAYO L (USA), INC., and BAYO L
SUPPLY & TRADING LIM TED, the defendants, shall forfeit to the
United States pursuant to 18 U S.C. 8§ 981(a)(1)(C and 28 U.S.C. 8§
2461, any and all property, real and personal, that constitutes or
is derived from proceeds traceable to the comm ssion of the
of fense, and all property traceable to such property, including but
not limted to: a sumof noney equal to at |east $100 million in

United States currency, representing the anmount of proceeds
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obtained as a result of the offenses charged in Counts One, Two,
and Four of this Indictnment, for which the defendants are jointly
and severally liable.

Substitute Assets Provision

35. If any of the above-described forfeitable property,
as a result of any act or om ssion of the defendants:
(a) cannot be | ocated upon the exercise of due diligence;
(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited wth,
a third person
(c) has been pl aced beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;
(d) has been substantially dimnished in value; or
(e) has been comm ngl ed with other property which cannot
be subdi vided wi thout difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to 21 US. C 8§
853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants
up to the value of the above forfeitable property, including, but
not limted to, all right, title, and interest of the respective
defendants in those lots or parcels of land, together with their
bui | di ngs, appurtenances, inprovenents, fixtures, attachnents, and
easenents | ocated at:
1. 2205 Kingston Street, Houston, Texas, 77019;
Parcel #0560140000029, Harris County, Texas;
Purchased by DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR, and
anot her buyer on or about June 11, 1998;
2. 3965 Del Monte Drive, Houston, Texas, 77019;
Par cel #0601620890002 in Harris County, Texas;

Purchased by DAVID B. CHALMERS, JR on or
about August 19, 1999; and
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3. 5936 Deerwood Road, Houston, Texas, 77057;
Par cel #0871770000009 in Harris County, Texas;
Purchased by LUDML DI ON SSIEV and another
buyer on or about Septenber 23, 1991.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 981, and
Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461.)

For eper son DAVID N. KELLEY
United States Attorney

23



	FindLaw: 


